
H0-398 
BON AIR MANOR 
Ellicott City 
Private early and middle nineteenth century 

Bon Air Manor was originally known as Benson's Park comprising 
250 acres which was patented in 1696 by Daniel Benson. In 1846 
Mr. Theodore R.S. Boyce deeded the property to Eliza Boyce. 

Reminiscent of The Oaks, H0-243, it too has a tall square granite 
tower. This one is three stories high, Romanesque, tent roofed 
and adjoining a two story high, three bay wide, three bay deep 
hipped roof, ashlar grey granite proportionally scaled structure. 

The west side of the south wall projects southward one bay in 
length, whose jerkinhead roof intersects with the main body of 
the house. A one story high, flat roofed, frame addition springs 
from the east side of this wall with a wide brick exterior 
chimney on its west wall. 

On June 1, 1871, Georgia Haight conveyed land to Henry Winter, 
who is reputed to have built the manor house at that time. 
Slave quarters on the property date from 1805. 
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The Fearing house is lo~ated at the east end of Stonecrest Drive 
which is the development of Stone Crest on the east side. of Rt. 103, 
Old Montgomery Road, approximately two miles south of Route 29. 

Ma in House 

It is a three bay wide, three bay deep, two-and a half story, hipped 
roof ashlar gray granite (proportionally scaled) str~ature with a three 
story high, tent roofed romanesque t011er on the nortt?Nest corner of the 
house and a one bay deep south projection two bays wide. Originally 
it is believed that the house had a west wing similar to the east wing 
on the west side of what was then a central t011er. 

Nol'th Elevation 

Two hipped roofed dormer wind011s with one-one lite casement eyebrOll 
wind011s rest in the north roof elevation. This elevation has a wide 
granite step and three wide wooden steps which lead to the west side of 
a one story high, hipped roof open porcb. This porch runs from the east 
side of the projecting three story high, west romanesque t011er along the 
entire north elevatton of the main house. It is supported by three 
wooden doric columns. 

The main rectangular entrance door holds one light in its upper 
portion and is flanked by single vertical side lites. It is surmounted 
by a three lite transom and flat store lintel. A second floor double 
windOll rests above the entrance, each component being a rectangular, 
double-hung, wind011 with one-over-one lites, seporated by a flat wooden 
pilaster, and flanked by black shutters. It is surmounted by a single 
flat stone lintel. 

Two single first and second floor windOl/s rest on the east side of 
the house, proportionally scaled and vertically alligned and similar to 
those described. All fenestration is decorated with projecting flat 
stone sills. 

A s imp 1 e wooden unadorned frieze or be 1 t runs a 1 ong the rioof 1 i ne 
which has a projecting wooden cornice decorated with a r011 of mutules 
on its underside which run along the entire perimeter of 1the .house~ A 
similar cornice adorns both the rumanesque t011er and the wooden pump 

house east of the north east corner of the main house. 

The South:Elevation 

The east side of the south wa 11 projects soutt?Nard one bay in length. 
Its south wall is two bays wide with a wide central, exterior brick 
chimney between two first and second floor rectangular wind011s, similar 
to those described and vertically alligned. A s1ngle rectangular second 
floor w i ndON res ts in its west wa 11 • 

On the west side of the south wall rests a singel, rectangular , 
second floor windOll in the west corner and a double rectangular windOll 
east of it , each component a rectangular, double-hung windON 
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holding one-over-one lites, separated by a flat wooden pilaster and 
surmounted by a:single flat, stone lintel. 

The East Elevation 

The east elevation of the main house holds three first and 
second floor vertically aligned , rectangular windONs .similar to those 
already described. 

A first floor rectangular kitchen entrance is located in the south 
bay and is approached by one stone and four wooden steos which lead to 
shed roofed, one bay wide, one bay deep, wooden frame vestibule. 

A cellar windOll rests in the north bay and a cellar door in the 
ceiter of the west wall. A single, hipped roof dormer is inset lnto 
the north side of the roof of this elevation. 

The Tower 

The north elevation of the to.-.ier holds a first floor rectangular, 
double-hung windON with one-over-one lites, similarly decorated as de­
scribed. Above rests a roman .. arched, double-hung second floor windON 
in both the east and north elevations, of which one-over-one lites are 
decorated with black shutters, projecting stone sills and.full arched 
ashlar stone lintels. Auove on the third floor of the east, west and 
north elevations rests a bulls' eye composed of a single central circular 
lite, surrounded by four lites radiatiag outward from it to the perimeter 
of the circular windON. A projecting, horizontal, stone belt course 
separates the second and third floors on all elevations. 

The east wall of the tONer holds a central, rectangular wooden cross 
paneled door with one lite transom, sar.mounted by a flat, stone lintel. 

Two lite, horizontal, rectangular cellar windows are centered into 
the base of the to.-.ier on the north and west elevations, s·urmounted 
by flat stone lintels. 

The West Elevation of the Main House & TOiier 

The west side of the tONer blends into the west elevation of the main body 
of the house. A wide, brick (laid in flemish bond) exterior chimney rises 
just south of the south• wall of the tONer. North of this chimney are two first floor 
rectangular windows similar to others already described and a single 
second floor w i ndON vert i ca 11 y aligned to the one on the south side which 
is inset into half of the tONer wall and half of the house wall which are 
contiguous on this aJevatio.1. Two silimar ftloor winda.irslk south of tllie 

brick chimney with the single second floor windON vertically aligned to the 
southernmost first floor windON. 

Brick Addition 

Extending from the west side of the south wall of the maici house is a three 
bay wide, one room deep brick (laid in running bond brick) one story high, 
flat roofed addition with massively wide exterior brick chimney taking 1 up 
the central bay of the west wall. This chimney is .fla.nked by double 
rectangular, louveredfive horizontal lite windONs. 
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A quatropartite, rectangular louvered, wind<M, each component of which 
holds five horizontal lites is centered into a central frame projection from 
the south wall of this addition, which has a brick base. 

East Elevation of Brick Addition 

A rectangular, double entrance door, each side holding four horizontal 
lites rests in the north bay of the east wall and is surmounted by a six lite 
transom. A double louvered wind<M, each component holding five horizontal lites 
rests in the south bay of the east wall. Three stone steps with brick risers 
lead to the entrance door. 

OUTiR BUILDINGS 

Pump House 

A tent roofed, one story high, frame pumphouse lies east of the north side 
of the east wall of the main house. It has a south rectangular door set into 
the center of a recessed south wall which provides a small covered porch. Two 
wooden posts support the tent roof at the south elevation. It is connected to 
the kitchen entrance by a flagstone patio. 

Smoke House 

A ga•led roof (running east~est), log house with central battan wood door 
on the west wall lies east of the house. It is built on a stone foundation. 

Outdoor Barbegue Pit 

An outdoor barbeque pit with flag stone patio and large outdoor fireplace 
lies north of the log house. A retaining wall, follcwing the contour of the land 
rises westward to four stone steps. 

Old Barn and Stone Jail 

An old barn and stone jail lie north of the house. The foundation of 
old slave quarters lies east which which were once erect during the tenure 
of Dr. and Mrs. Fearing. A timber found in the slave quarters had a date of 
1805 written upon it. 

Gatehouse to Property 

A stone gatehouse to the property is new the residence of Mr. and Mrs. 
Mclynn (465-2450) off New Cut Road. It is an ashlar gray granite structure 
with similar cornice to that of Bon Air Manor decorating its roof line. 

Cinder Block Outer Building 

A cinder block, gabled roof (running east~est) structure lies south 
of the main 
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house. Mature trees and lovely lawns surround the house and out buildings 
of this comfortable and gracious home, so solidly constructed and so well 
maintained. 
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Bon Air traces its history back to 1805 and existent slave quarters 
east of the house. It was originally known as Benson's Park and consisted 
of some 268 acres of land. Earliest land records at the Howard County Land 
Record's Office trace the history of the property back to Mr. Theodore R. S. 
Boyce who was supposed to have deeded the property to Eliza Boyce on May 7, 
1846. (Liber #1, Howard County Land Records) It is.very probable that an 
earlier dwelling was located here dated from this time. A survey of the 
property was done by William Dawson to settle an equity case in the will of 
Eliza Boyce (which was filed W6 #1 - 443). In this will written Jan. 12, 
1848 she devised land to her neice Georgia Haight. 

In 1868 an equity suite by Richard Clark Cooke, plaintiff vs Georgia 
Haight was institued which resulted in the settlement of the estate. On 
June 1, 1871 , Georgia Haight conveyed land to Henry Winter. (Howard 
County Record's Office# 31-187). Between 1871 and 1878 Mr. Winter built 
Bon Air Manor and gate house. The Hopkins Atlas of 1878 notes the property 
and buildings. 

Others owners were a Dr. Bordley who bought the house and land for his 
brother to raise mushrooms. Latter Mr. Claude Skinner, Sr. lived here. In 
1950 Dr. and Mrs. William Fearing, present owners bought the property and 
in 1955 made it their permanent home. Mr. Skinner brought Dr. and Mrs. 
Fearing an1 old rafter from the old slave quarters located on the property 
east of Bon Air Manor. The rafter had the date 1805 written on it. 

Whether a previous stone residence stood on the foundation of the 
present house at that time is presently only conjecture. it does, however, 
appear to b~ a reasonable assumption. , -1 

Architecturally the building is significant as an example of the ltaliana~e 

style as evidenced in the mid to late ninet~erit,h century ini Ho.vard C~nty, 
Maryland. The vernacular granite architecture of Howard County with its fine 
scale and proportions is blended into the ltal,ianate byi the cons.~ruction of 
the three story high romanesque tower on the south west corner, so characer-
istic of the Italianate. , 

The wide, overhanging cornice decorated by a row of mutules running along 
the entire perimeter of the hipped roof line of both the main house and the 
roof of the tower is also representative o~., the ltalianatederived from the 
Italian Renaissance. The Ronianesque revival style was also in vogue at this 
time in the United States. The second floor roman windows of the tower are 
representative of this sty~e. 

In conclusion Bon Air Manor 
cessfully blending elements of 
vernacular stone architecture. 

is an exceptionally fine eclectic building su~ 
the Italianate, Romanesque and Howard County 

Ps-709 
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For these reasons Bon Air Manor should be considered for in­
clusion to the National Register of Historic Places, the Critical 
Areas State Planning Program and any future local landmark legislation. 
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Interview with Mrs. William Fearing at Bon Air Manor on March 11, 1977 

Private records of Mrs. William Fearing. 

Hopkins Atlas of 1878 of Hc:Mard County, Maryland 
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